
HEARING TO BE CONDUCTED UNDER THE TERMS OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003 
 

 

 
 

 

City of Westminster 
 

  
 

Committee Agenda 
 

Title: 
 

 Licensing Sub-Committee (5) 

   

Meeting Date: 
 

 Thursday, 29 July 2021 

   

Time: 
 

 10.00 am 

   

Venue: 
 

 This will be a virtual meeting 

   

Members:  Councillors: 

  Murad Gassanly (Chairman) 
Louise Hyams 
Aziz Toki 

   

  If you require further information, please contact the Committee 
Officer, Cameron MacLean, Temporary Committee and 
Councillor Support Co-ordinator. 

Email:  cmaclean@westminster.gov.uk 
Tel:  07814 998 037 
Corporate Website:  www.westminster.gov.uk 

 
 

http://www.westminster.gov.uk/


 

 

Note for Members: Members are reminded that officer contacts are shown at the end of 
each report and Members are welcome to raise questions in advance of the meeting.  
Regarding Item 2, guidance on Declarations of Interests is included in the Code of 
Governance. If Members and Officers have any questions, they should contact the 
Director of Law before the meeting please. 

 

AGENDA 

PART 1 (IN PUBLIC)  

1.   MEMBERSHIP  

 To report any changes to the Membership  

2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 To receive declarations by Members and Officers of the 
existence and nature of any pecuniary interests or any other 
significant interest in matters on this agenda. 

 

 Licensing Applications for Determination Pages 

1.   10 AM: HOME GROWN, 44 GREAT CUMBERLAND PLACE, 
LONDON W1H 7BS - APPLICATION FOR PREMISES 
LICENCE VARIATION 

5 - 76 

 Ward 
CIA* 
SCZ** 

Site Name & 
Address 

Application 
Type 

Licensing 
Reference No. 

Bryanston 
& Dorset 
Square 

N/A 

N/A 

Home Grown 
44 Great 
Cumberland 
Pl 
London 
W1H 7BS 

Premises 
Licence 
Variation 

21/03349/LIPV 

*Cumulative Impact Area 
** Special Consideration Zone 

This will be a virtual meeting. Members of the Public can 
view the live broadcast using the media links on the 
Council’s website. 

 

2.   2 PM: 52 LUPUS ST (GROUND FLOOR), LONDON SW1V 3EE 
- APPLICATION FOR NEW PREMISES LICENCE 

77 - 118 

 Ward 
CIA* 
SCZ** 

Site Name & 
Address 

Application 
Type 

Licensing 
Reference No. 

Warwick Ground Floor 
52 Lupus Street 

New 
Premises 

21/01357/LIPN 

 



 
 

 

N/A 

N/A 

London 
SW1V 3EE 

Licence 

*Cumulative Impact Area 
** Special Consideration Zone 

This will be a virtual meeting. Members of the Public can 
view the live broadcast using the media links on the 
Council’s website. 

Stuart Love  
Chief Executive 
21 July 2021 



 
 

 

In considering applications for Premises Licences under the Licensing Act 2003, the Sub 
Committee is advised of the following: 

Policy Considerations 

The Licensing Sub-Committee is required to have regard to the City of Westminster 
statement of Licensing Policy, effective from January 2021. 

Guidance Considerations 

The Licensing Sub-Committee is required to have regard to any guidance issued by the 
Secretary of State under Section 182 the Licensing Act 2003.  The most recent version 
was published in April 2018. 

Core hours When Customers Are Permitted to Be on The Premises  

Core hours, as set out in the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy 2021, are when 
customers are permitted to be on the Premises. The maximum opening hours permitted 
will not exceed the start time and terminal hour for each of the days where licensable 
activity is permitted.  

Note: The core hours are for all licensable activities but if an application includes Late 
Night Refreshment, then the starting time for that licensable activity will be 11.00 pm. 

1. Casinos  

Up to 24 hours a day whilst Casino Gaming is permitted by a Premises Licence under 
the Gambling Act 2005.  

2. Cinemas, Cultural Venues and Live Sporting Premises 

Monday to Sunday:  09:00 hours to 24:00 hours 

3. Hotels 

Monday to Thursday:  09:00 hours to 23:30 hours 
Friday and Saturday:  09:00 hours to 24:00 hours  
Sunday:  09:00 hours to 22:30 hours 
Sundays Immediately Prior To A Bank Holiday: 09:00 hours to 24:00 hours 
Sale of alcohol to guests for 
consumption in hotel/guest rooms only: Anytime up to 24 hours 

4. Off licences 

Monday to Saturday:  08:00 hours to 23:00 hours 
Sunday:  09:00 hours to 22:30 hours 

5. Outdoor Spaces 

Monday to Thursday:  09:00 hours to 23:30 hours 
Friday and Saturday:  09:00 hours to 24:00 hours 
Sunday:  09:00 hours to 22:30 hours 
Sundays Immediately Prior To A Bank Holiday: 09:00 hours to 24:00 hours 

6. Pubs and bars, Fast Food and Music and Dance venues  

Monday to Thursday:  10:00 hours to 23:30 hours 
Friday and Saturday: 10:00 hours to 24:00 hours 
Sunday:  09:00 hours to 22:30 hours 



 
 

 

Sundays Immediately Prior To A Bank Holiday: 12:00 hours to 24:00 hours 

7. Qualifying Clubs  

Monday to Thursday:  09:00 hours to 24:00 hours 
Friday and Saturday:  09:00 hours to 24:00 hours 
Sunday:  09:00 hours to 22:30 hours 
Sundays Immediately Prior To A Bank Holiday: 09:00 hours to 24:00 hours 

8. Restaurants 

Monday to Thursday:  09:00 hours to 23:30 hours 
Friday and Saturday:  09:00 hours to 24:00 hours 
Sunday:  09:00 hours to 22:30 hours 
Sundays Immediately Prior To A Bank Holiday: 09:00 hours to 24:00 hours 

9. Sexual Entertainment Venues and Sex Cinemas 

Monday to Thursday:  09:00 hours to 23:30 hours 
Friday and Saturday:  09:00 hours to 24:00 hours 
Sunday:  09:00 hours to 22:30 hours 
Sundays Immediately Prior To A Bank Holiday:  09:00 hours to 24:00 hours 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

1 
 

1. Procedure for Virtual Hearings Held Under the Licensing Act 2003 

The purpose of this procedure is to clarify how the Licensing Sub-Committee 
(“the Sub-Committee”) will conduct virtual licensing hearings made under the 
Licensing Act 2003 (as amended) and for licensing applications under other 
regimes.  All hearings are conducted with due regard to the Council’s 
Constitution, relevant legislation and case law, regulations and guidance.  

2. Accessing Virtual Hearings 

Virtual Licensing Sub-Committee hearings will be held on Microsoft Teams as a 
live Teams event.  Each application will be dealt with by a separate Teams 
meeting.  All applicants, responsible authorities and other persons (who have 
submitted a valid representation) (collectively called “Parties”) will be provided 
with a link to the meeting beforehand.  Only these parties will be able to 
participate in the hearing (together with their adviser) provided they have 
registered, in advance, with the Licensing Authority, as specified below.   A link 
for the general public to watch the meeting will be available on the Council’s 
website. 

3. Final Submissions Before the Hearing 

The parties (or their representatives) should use their best endeavours to ensure 
that all of their final submissions have been made so as to be included in the 
Sub-Committee report (typically no later than 5.00 pm, 5 working days before 
the Sub-Committee hearing).  This means by 5pm on the Thursday, the week 
before the Sub-Committee hearing is due to take place. Final submissions should 
set out the key points, policies and conditions that a party wishes the Sub-
Committee to take account of in determining the application.   

Any final submissions that a party wishes to make, (that have not been submitted 
so as to have been included in the report), must be submitted to the Licensing 
Service by 12 noon, 3 working days before the hearing is due to take place.  
The Licensing email address is: licensing@westminster.gov.uk 

4. Rules During Licensing Hearings 

The following rules must be followed by all parties to ensure the virtual hearing 
can progress as successfully as possible: 

4.1. All parties wishing to participate in the hearing must register their wish to 
participate in the hearing and provide their email addresses to the Licensing 
Service at licensing@westminster.gov.uk  no later than 12 noon on the Monday 
before the Thursday hearing is scheduled to take place. 

4.2. All parties should join the virtual hearing at least 15 minutes before the advertised 
start time to ensure they are ready to start at the advertised start time.  After the 
advertised start time has passed no registered parties will be allowed to join, 
except in exceptional circumstances, when permitted by the Chairman, as this 
could disrupt the meeting. 

4.3. All parties must only address the hearing when invited to do so by the Chairman. 

4.4. All parties must keep their microphones on mute unless they are speaking.  The 
Chairman has the ability to mute all parties’ microphones. 

page 1

Agenda Annex

mailto:licensing@westminster.gov.uk
mailto:licensing@westminster.gov.uk


 
 

2 
 

4.5. If a party wishes to interject, they should put their name in the messaging field.  
The chairman has the discretion to invite the party to make their comment at an 
appropriate stage in the hearing. 

4.6. All parties are asked to keep their comments as succinct as possible. 

4.7. If a party has a question for another party, this must be addressed to the 
Chairman who will have the discretion to ask the relevant party to respond. 

4.8. Parties wishing to make suggestions as to the conditions that may be imposed 
in the event of the application being granted should do so by reference to the 
schedule of proposed conditions set out in the Conditions Schedule annexed to 
the committee papers.  In so doing, they should use the same numbering in that 
schedule. This is to ensure that there is ease of referencing the conditions by all 
the parties. 

4.9. To ensure the smooth running of hearings, a time limit will be placed on each 
party’s submissions.  This time limit must be adhered to but the Chairman has 
the flexibility to amend the time limit when it is considered appropriate to do so. 

4.10. When referring to the hearing papers, participants should give the page and 
paragraph number when appropriate.  

4.11. The Chairman has the discretion to amend these rules in any given case where 
they consider it is appropriate to do so. 

5. Procedure 

5.1. The Chairman will open the meeting and introduce the members of the Sub-
Committee and the other officers attending with the members, including the legal 
adviser, policy adviser and committee officer. 

5.2. The Chairman will confirm the procedure that the hearing will follow.  

5.3. The Sub-Committee members and officers will be asked to declare any interests 
they may have and any other procedural business will be transacted. 

5.4. The presenting officer from the licensing service will introduce the application, 
giving a brief description of the application and introducing all the Parties in 
attendance for each application 

5.5. Each party who has registered to speak, will be invited to make their 
representations and will be allowed a maximum of 10 minutes each.  In order to 
ensure that the hearing is fair to all parties and is conducted in an orderly manner, 
the Chairman has the discretion to extend this time limit where it is appropriate 
for the determination of the application.   

5.6. Parties will normally speak in the following order, (the order may change for other 
types of licensing applications):  

(a) The applicant  
(b) Responsible authorities  
(c) Other persons 

5.7. The Chairman has the right to grant each party the opportunity to ask questions 
of each other for the purposes of clarification only where it is appropriate to do 
so.  The Sub-Committee members will then be able to ask questions of the 
parties. 

page 2



 
 

3 
 

5.8. The legal adviser and/or policy officer may ask questions of the parties as they 
consider appropriate, including in relation to the conditions which should be 
attached to the application if the Sub-Committee is minded to grant the 
application. 

5.9. Each party will have an opportunity to make a short closing submission each (not 
introducing any new evidence or case law) of no more than 5 minutes each, in 
the following order:  

(a) Responsible authorities 
(b) Other persons  
(c) The applicant  

5.10. The Chairman shall then close the meeting and all parties will leave the meeting. 
A Decision will not be announced at the end of the hearing unless there is a legal 
requirement to do so. 

5.11. The Sub-Committee will deliberate in closed session and all parties will be 
advised of the outcome in a written Summary Decision.  Unless otherwise 
required or permitted by Regulations, summary decisions will be made within a 
period of five working days of the last day of the hearing. The written summary 
of the decision (“Summary Decision”) will be sent to all the parties as soon as 
possible after the Decision has been made. The full Decision, setting out the 
reasons for the Decision, (Formal Notification) will be sent to the parties as soon 
as possible thereafter.  The time limit for appealing will not commence until the 
Formal Notification has been sent to the parties. 

Dated: 14 January 2021 

page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Item No:   

   

Date:  29 July 2021 

   

Licensing Ref No:  21/03349/LIPV - Premises Licence Variation 

   

Title of Report:  Home Grown 
44 Great Cumberland Place 
London 
W1H 7BS 

   

Report of:  Director of Public Protection and Licensing 

   

Wards involved:  Bryanston And Dorset Square 

   

Policy context:  City of Westminster Statement of Licensing Policy  

   

Financial summary:  None 

   

Report Author:  Kevin Jackaman 
Senior Licensing Officer 

   

Contact details  Telephone: 020 7641 6500 
Email: kjackaman@westminster.gov.uk 

 

Licensing Sub-Committee 
Report 

page 5

Agenda Item 1.



 
1. Application 

 

1-A Applicant and premises 
 

Application Type: Variation of a Premises Licence, Licensing Act 2003 
 

Application received date: 12 April 2021 
 

Applicant: Home Grown Club Limited 
 

Premises: Home Grown 
 

Premises address: 44 Great Cumberland 
Place 
London 
W1H 7BS 
 

Ward: 
 

Bryanston And 
Dorset Square 

Cumulative 
Impact Area: 

None 

 Special 
Consideration 
Zone: 

None 

Premises description: 
 

The premises trade as a private members club with 
accompanying accommodation 
 

Variation description: 
 

1. Suspend the operation of conditions 51, 53 and 54 below 
until 30th September 2021 

51. Any external terrace areas may only be used for the 
consumption of alcohol on Fridays and 
Saturdays 
52. The supply of alcohol for consumption on the terrace must 
be by waiter or waitress service only; 
53. Any external terrace areas shall be vacated by 7pm save 
for persons using the area to smoke; 
54. No more than ten persons, excluding staff, shall be 
permitted on the first floor terrace at any one 
time. 
2. Insert a new condition 
“No more than 25 patrons (who shall be seated) may occupy 
the terrace between 11.00 and 22.00 on any day until 30th 
September 2021 when this condition shall cease to have 
effect.” 
 

Premises licence history: 
 

The premises have had the benefit of a licence since 2012. A 
copy of the current premises licence (licence number 
19/09266/LIPDPS) can be found at Appendix 1. 
A full licence history for the premises appears at appendix 3. 
 

Applicant submissions: None 
 

Applicant amendments: None 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

page 6



1-B Current and proposed licensable activities, areas and hours 
 

Regulated Entertainment 
 

Performance of live music 
 

 Current  
Hours 

Proposed  
Hours 

Licensable Area 

Start: End: Start: End: Current: Proposed: 

Monday 07:00 01:00 No change Basement to 
fourth floor 

No change 

Tuesday 07:00 01:00 

Wednesday 07:00 01:00 

Thursday 07:00 01:00 

Friday 07:00 01:00 

Saturday 07:00 01:00 

Sunday 07:00 01:00 

Seasonal 
variations/ 
Non-standard 
timings: 

Current: Proposed: 

The hours for licensable activities 
may be extended from the end of 
permitted hours on New Year's Eve 
to the start of permitted hours on 
New Year's Day. 

No change 

 

Recorded music 
 

 Current  
Hours 

Proposed  
Hours 

Licensable Area 

Start: End: Start: End: Current: Proposed: 

Monday 07:00 01:00 No change Basement to 
fourth floor 

No change 

Tuesday 07:00 01:00 

Wednesday 07:00 01:00 

Thursday 07:00 01:00 

Friday 07:00 01:00 

Saturday 07:00 01:00 

Sunday 07:00 01:00 

Seasonal 
variations/ 
Non-standard 
timings: 

Current: Proposed: 

The hours for licensable activities 
may be extended from the end of 
permitted hours on New Year's Eve 
to the start of permitted hours on 
New Year's Day. 

No change 

 

Late night refreshment 
 

Indoors, outdoors or both Current : Proposed: 

Both No change 

 Current  
Hours 

Proposed  
Hours 

Licensable Area 

Start: End: Start: End: Current: Proposed: 

Monday 23:00 01:30 No change Basement to 
fourth floor 

No change 

Tuesday 23:00 01:30 

Wednesday 23:00 01:30 

Thursday 23:00 01:30 

Friday 23:00 01:30 

Saturday 23:00 01:30 

page 7



Sunday 23:00 01:30 

Seasonal 
variations/ 
Non-standard 
timings: 

Current: Proposed: 

The hours for licensable activities 
may be extended from the end of 
permitted hours on New Year's Eve 
to the start of permitted hours on 
New Year's Day. 

No change 

 

Sale by Retail of Alcohol 
 

On or off sales Current : Proposed: 

On and Off No change 

 Current  
Hours 

Proposed  
Hours 

Licensable Area 

Start: End: Start: End: Current: Proposed: 

Monday 07:00 01:00 No change Basement to 
fourth floor 

No change 

Tuesday 07:00 01:00 

Wednesday 07:00 01:00 

Thursday 07:00 01:00 

Friday 07:00 01:00 

Saturday 07:00 01:00 

Sunday 07:00 01:00 

Seasonal 
variations/ 
Non-standard 
timings: 

Current: Proposed: 

The hours for licensable activities 
may be extended from the end of 
permitted hours on New Year's Eve 
to the start of permitted hours on 
New Year's Day. 

No change 

 

Sale by Retail of Alcohol (Residents and their guests) 
 

On or off sales Current : Proposed: 

On and Off No change 

 Current  
Hours 

Proposed  
Hours 

Licensable Area 

Start: End: Start: End: Current: Proposed: 

Monday 00:00 00:00 No change Basement to 
fourth floor 

No change 

Tuesday 00:00 00:00 

Wednesday 00:00 00:00 

Thursday 00:00 00:00 

Friday 00:00 00:00 

Saturday 00:00 00:00 

Sunday 00:00 00:00 

Seasonal 
variations/ 
Non-standard 
timings: 

Current: Proposed: 

The hours for licensable activities 
may be extended from the end of 
permitted hours on New Year's Eve 
to the start of permitted hours on 
New Year's Day. 

No change 

 

page 8



 

Hours premises are open to the public 
 

 Current  
Hours 

Proposed  
Hours 

Premises Area 

Start: End: Start: End: Current: Proposed: 

Monday 00:00 00:00 No change Basement to 
fourth floor 

No change 

Tuesday 00:00 00:00 

Wednesday 00:00 00:00 

Thursday 00:00 00:00 

Friday 00:00 00:00 

Saturday 00:00 00:00 

Sunday 00:00 00:00 

Seasonal 
variations/ 
Non-standard 
timings: 

Current: Proposed: 

None No change 

 

1-C Layout alteration 
 

No change of layout is proposed 

 

1-D Conditions being varied, added or removed 
 

The applicant is seeking a suspension of the following conditions until 30th September 
2021 
 

51. Any external terrace areas may only be used for the consumption of alcohol on Fridays and 
Saturdays 
52. The supply of alcohol for consumption on the terrace must be by waiter or waitress service 
only; 
53. Any external terrace areas shall be vacated by 7pm save for persons using the area to 
smoke; 
54. No more than ten persons, excluding staff, shall be permitted on the first floor terrace at any 
one time. 
 

The applicant is seeking the addition of the following condition 
 

No more than 25 patrons (who shall be seated) may occupy the terrace between 11.00 and 
22.00 on any day until 30th September 2021 when this condition shall cease to have effect 

Adult entertainment: Current position: Proposed position: 

None 
 

No change 

 

2. Representations 
 

2-A Responsible Authorities 
 

Responsible 
Authority: 

Environmental Health 

Representative:  Dave Nevitt 

Received:  
 

10 May 2021 

page 9



I wish to make Representations on the following grounds: 
Representation is made in relation to the application, as the proposals are likely to increase the 
risk of Public Nuisance. 
 
I am concerned about the risk of an adverse impact on the nearby local residents from noise, 
especially late in the evening. 

 

2-B Other Persons 
 

Name:  
 

 

Address and/or Residents Association:   

Status: valid In support or opposed: opposed 

Received:  
 

09 May 2021 

Great Cumberland Place is quiet residential street as is the adjoining Brunswick Mews. 
Following several residents representations to the Ward Councillors we are objecting to the 
application for a licence variation 21/03349/LIPV at Home Grown Club as it will cause a public 
nuisance in this residential area. 
 
The noise created by giving permission to Home Grown customers to sit outside on a terrace 
will have a wide ranging “cauldron” effect due to the amplification created by the surrounding tall 
buildings. Therefore the noise would span a large number of residential properties across 6 
streets. This variation is significantly contrary to the spirit of the original licensing conditions 
made in 2019 18/05022/LIPV and when planning permission was granted 2017.  
Currently all entertainment licences at this location are internal including next door at The Prince 
Akatoki Hotel (previously The Arch). The former New Cavendish Club (currently the Home 
Grown site) was also mainly internal.  The Home Grown Club’s business does not serve the 
local community unless one is a member of the Club.   
 
We all fully aware of the needs for businesses to reopen, which the Club is able to do on 17th 
May. Any additional external hospitality must be balanced against the needs of local residents. 
In this case, Councillors are of the opinion that needs of surrounding residents must be 
protected. 
 

Name:  

Address and/or Residents Association:  
 

 

Status: valid In support or opposed: opposed 

Received:  
 

29 April 2021 

The terrace of the Home Grown club is connected to the back of my house and I am concerned 
with the high levels of noise and the echo effect at the back of the buildings which will be very 
disruptive for me and my family - especially with the COVID challenges of needing to work from 
home.  
 
In addition, during the summer months it gets hot in the home and we need to have back 
windows open and cigarette smoke travels into the house which is also disruptive.  
I am not supportive of this application. 
 
 

page 10



Name:  

Address and/or Residents Association:  
 

 

Status: valid In support or opposed: opposed 

Received:  
 

30 April 2021 

The back of my property adjoins the terrace for which the Home Grown Club has made an 
application to vary its licence. The result of the changes that the club proposes would be that I 
would have a pub/club operating under my windows seven days a week from morning to night. 
It is not long since the original licence application was heard, when the decision taken at 
committee confirmed the planning restrictions which had been placed on the use of the terrace. 
The use of the terrace in the way now proposed would cause public nuisance, and affect the 
amenity of the many residential properties surrounding this terrace. Furthermore, the height of 
the buildings around the terrace means that sound echoes and so would affect properties as far 
away as Montagu Street. I hope that the Council continues to restrict activity on this terrace, so 
that we can enjoy the peace and quiet of our own homes 

Name:  

Address and/or Residents Association:  
 

 

Status: valid In support or opposed: opposed 

Received:  
 

30 April 2021 

I oppose the variation of licence which would permit up to 25 people up to 10pm 7 days a week 
on their terrace. We have already suffered from noise pollution from the limited amount of 
people on the terrace, and also from the music system in their basement which manages to 
travel through multiple buildings.  
 
By allowing this further variation, this would make life unbearable. There is a small group of 
courtyards which backs on to their Terrace, where noise travels very far. It's all residential 
around here, and it would be absolutely absurd should this change be allowed to happen. This 
will be a nuisance for many many residential premises. Home House have no right to operate in 
such a way in such a residential area, and should they be allowed to do so, I would find this 
extremely unacceptable and not in Keeping with the preservation of peaceful environments for 
your residential tenants. Home House should not have chosen such a location for their 
premises, with the intention of creating such a disturbance for the surrounding residential 
neighbours. Allowing up to 25 people on the terrace up to 10 p.m. seven days a week would be 
absolutely preposterous, and I am shocked that they would even suggest such a thing. 
 

Name:  

Address and/or Residents Association:  
 

 
 

Status: valid In support or opposed: opposed 

Received:  
 

30 April 2021 

The Home Grown Club Terrace is immediately adjacent to a quiet residential street. The walls 
of the club and surrounding buildings enclose the space with the effect of amplifying all sounds 
emanating from the club.  
 
We have young children who need to get a good night's sleep, particularly on school nights. As 
we approach summer with bedroom windows open, they will be significantly disturbed by 

page 11



partying at the end of the street.  
 
Many of us a also still working from home and do not need additional distractions.  
 
If the club opened onto Great Cumberland Place, I would not object: I understand the business 
need to re-open. But the club is proposing having a loud entertainment space which essentially 
sits within Brunswick Mews from a noise perspective. 
 
 

Name:  

Address and/or Residents Association:  
 

 

Status: valid In support or opposed: opposed 

Received:  
 

02 May 2021 

I object strongly to this application for a variation the grounds that it will cause public nuisance 
to me in my home and to the numerous residents surrounding this property. Having the terrace 
used for hospitality purposes would make my own (and others') properties unliveable, due to 
noise, primarily, but also due to smells,. When cigarettes are being smoked on the terrace , the 
smell emanates into my home.  
 
We are disappointed that the Homegrown Club has applied for such a variation, when residents 
, and the adjoining hotel, made it clear, before they opened as a new club, that use of the 
terrace would affect the amenity for the residents of the surrounding properties - with noise 
pollution. The area at the back of the premises is totally residential and surrounded by high 
buildings - along Great Cumberland Place, George Street, Montagu Street and Upper Berkeley 
Street - and so noise within that area echoes around, affecting the back of these properties as 
well as the mews houses in Brunswick Mews and Montagu Mews South. With no other 
commercial activity in this area, it is normally very quiet and peaceful.  
 
When the Homegrown Club was being considered for 44 Great Cumberland Place, we were 
promised by Home House and by The Portman Estate that it would be a business club, not a 
social club, which would respect the amenity and peaceful nature of this totally residential area. 
Opening the terrace to all day hospitality seven days a week is a very radical departure from 
that promise. If members of the Homegrown Club wish to dine or drink outside, there is the 
opportunity to do so at Home House. 
 
We hope that the Council considers the adverse impact that this would have on the residents 
surrounding the terrace of 44 Great Cumberland Place, and rejects this application to vary the 
conditions that were considered so carefully by previous Licensing Committee 
 

Name:  

Address and/or Residents Association:  
 

 

Status: valid In support or opposed: opposed 

Received:  
 

04 May 2021 

This is a residential area with many people with young children; the home already had parties 
(pre covid) late into the night that kept us and our children awake - this would make the situation 
significantly worse. this should not be allowed in this neighbourhood.  
In addition there is already an increase in anti social behaviour in this area and this will make 
the situation worse. Please reject this application 
 

page 12



Name:  

Address and/or Residents Association:  
 

 
 

Status: valid In support or opposed: opposed 

Received: 05 May 2021 

We refer to the Home Grown Club’s application to vary their licence by suspending the 
operation of conditions 51, 53 and 54 until 30 September 2021 removing the following 
conditions:  

51. Any external terrace areas may only be used for the consumption of alcohol on Fridays and
Saturdays.
53. Any external terrace areas shall be vacated by 7pm save persons using the area to smoke.
54. No more than ten persons, excluding staff, shall be permitted on the first floor terrace at any
one time.

The application also seeks to impose a new condition limiting the number of persons who may 
occupy the terrace to 25 persons (who must be seated) until 30 September 2021 when it is 
proposed the condition will cease to have effect.  

The Home Grown Club adjoins a substantial number of residential flats. It also adjoins The 
Prince Akatoki Hotel, which is a luxury 5 star hotel with 82 guest rooms. We own and operate 
the business at The Prince Akatoki Hotel.  

A substantial number of guest rooms at The Prince Akatoki Hotel overlook and are in close 
proximity to the external terrace located at the Home Grown Club.  
Conditions 51, 53 and 54 were imposed as conditions to the Home Grown Club’s liquor licence 
to limit public nuisance (specifically noise) emanating from the Home Grown Club in order to 
minimize the substantial loss of amenity to adjoining premises. Conditions 51, 53 and 54 limit 
the hours, number of persons and use of the external terrace. They do not however limit the 
general hours of operation of the Home Grown Club nor prohibit patrons of the Home Grown 
Club from smoking on the terrace after 7pm.  

We believe conditions 51, 53 and 54 are essential to ensure that people living in adjoining 
residential premises and staying at our hotel are able to reside in those premises without undue 
noise and nuisance emanating from the Home Grown Club during evening and early morning 
hours. 

Any increase in existing limit on the number of patrons who may use the terrace at one time 
will inevitably result in a proportionate increase in the noise emanating from the terrace.  
Any change to the hours in which the external terrace may be used will result in substantial 
noise being generated from the terrace during those extended hours. The hours after 7pm are 
generally used by residents and guests of adjoining premises to either sleep or relax in their 
own premises. We believe that the existing hours of use of the external terrace at the Home 
Grown Club are reasonable and appropriate and that any variation of these hours will result in 
an undue burden and considerable public nuisance to adjoining residents and the guests of our 
hotel.  
We also believe that the consumption of alcohol by persons on the external terrace should be 
limited to Fridays and Saturdays as the consumption of alcohol will inevitably result in people 
remaining on the terrace for longer periods substantially increasing noise emanating from 
these areas and Fridays and Saturdays are days when residents and hotel guests are more 
likely to be out until 7pm when they are likely to return home to relax in their homes and 
bedrooms.  

page 13



The Prince Akatoki Hotel has received limited complaints regarding noise emanating from the 
Home Grown Club’s existing operations. The Prince Akatoki Hotel believes that altering the 
conditions on the Home Grown Club’s external terrace as proposed in the variation application 
would result in a substantial loss of amenity for its guests and adjoining residents and have a 
substantial detrimental impact on those guests and residents.  
 
We accordingly respectfully request that Council reject the application from the Home Grown 
Club. 
 

Name:  

Address and/or Residents Association:  
 

 

Status: valid In support or opposed: opposed 

Received:  
 

06 May 2021 

I live in a property which is close to the terrace of the HomeGrown Club. It is quiet at the rear of 
our properties and the use of the terrace in the way proposed under the variation of the licence 
would cause public nuisance and affect residential amenity.  
 
I am working from home and the noise would have a bad impact on daily living, never mention 
the noise continuing into the evening. I hope that the variation application will be rejected 
 

Name:  

Address and/or Residents Association:  
 

 

Status: valid In support or opposed: opposed 

Received:  
 

06 May 2021 

I object to the proposal which will impact on my quiet enjoyment of my property which is 
adjacent to the business club, having people standing and drinking in the terrace with loud talk 
because of the drinking, and smoking will upset me family life. 
 
I do not support your proposal 
 

Name:  

Address and/or Residents Association:  
 

 
 

Status: valid In support or opposed: opposed 

Received:  
 

06 May 2021 

I am living on the 2nd floor of a building neighbored with the venue - . 
Terrace of a venue in question is at the level of my yard window. I fully understand the 
eagerness to create ambience for clients, however, it is wise in order to avoid conflicts to take 
into consideration interests of your neighborhood.  
 
Under opening hours described in the license application, I expect that in case of license's 
approval, it would not be easy anymore to relax in the evening hours at apartments I am living 
in. Loud conversations are very common on terraces if access is available until late hours; my 
interests therefore were not taken into account properly. 
 

page 14



I strongly object against the matter in question on the basis of opening hours and access of 
guests to terrace in late evening hours and during the night. 
 

Name:   

Address and/or Residents Association:  
 

 
 

Status: valid In support or opposed: opposed 

Received:  
 

06 May 2021 

I object the proposal as it will impact the quite of my property that is in front of the business club. 
Especially now that we are all working remotely I cannot accept the noise of people who are 
drinking, eating and smoking everyday for the entire day 7 days per week. 
It will massively impact my daily life, in terms of productivity during the day and possibility to rest 
and relax during the weekends.  
 

Name:  

Address and/or Residents Association:  
 

 

Status: valid In support or opposed: opposed 

Received:  
 

06 May 2021 

I live in a nearby property to the terrace where it is proposed that restaurant and bar activities 
are offered most of the day and evening seven days a week. This would be very disruptive as 
my bedroom overlooks this terrace. I am a teacher and I have been running on-line classes 
from my bedroom during the day until early evening. The noise from the terrace would cause 
major problems for me.  
 
Please reject this application on the grounds of public nuisance. 
 
 

Name:  

Address and/or Residents Association:  
 

 

Status: valid In support or opposed: opposed 

Received:  
 

07 May 2021 

I own the property at  
Home Grown Club, 44 Great Cumberland Place, is on the corner of the Mews 
The proposed bar/terrace is over the Mews itself, and not the main road 
The Club exists for corporate clients having a jolly away day/night (it has accomodation on the 
premises) 
In my experience to date, the Club owners are not at all interested in the quality of this 
residential and peaceful neighbourhood 
In the 36 years I have lived in the Mews, there has never been a commercial enterprice with an 
outdoor venue 
It will impact negatively on the well being, peacefulness, and peace of mind of the residents of 
this Mews, including myself 
I object most strongly to the application for a licence for an outoor bar/terrace 
 

page 15



Name:  

Address and/or Residents Association:  
 

 

Status: valid In support or opposed: opposed 

Received:  
 

07 May  

I'm writing to raise my concerns as to the application to extend the opening hours and days of 
the terrace at the Home Grown Club on 44 Great Cumberland Place. I and my family have lived 
in Brunswick Mews for seven years. One of the nice things about the location is that while it is 
central Marylebone, it remains quiet. The noise from the Home Grown Terrace will filter down 
the mews and be a nuisance. I know that it will as I lived in the Mews during the updating of that 
site and construction caused significant noise that travelled. I wake very early for work daily and 
noise on all evenings of the week would make it very difficult to live in the Mews. It would be a 
significant change in the nature of the area. Certainly a 10pm opening is too late, and seven 
nights a week is simply not reasonable. It will change the neighbourhood. The current limits to 
the weekend afternoons / early evenings only seem reasonable given the residential nature of 
Great Cumberland Place and surroundings streets. There are no other commercial premises 
offering services outside nearby. Thank you for considering my comments.  
 

Name:  

Address and/or Residents Association:  
 

 
 

Status: valid In support or opposed: opposed 

Received:  
 

09 May 2021 

I object the proposal which will impact on my life. 
I lived in such a place. 
That was a nightmare. 
Every day after work, instead of resting in my apartment, I experienced a drama. 
People sat or stood drinking and smoking while talking loudly. 
It was all mentally unbearable. 
During the lockdown, when the place was closed, it was possible to live normally. At that time, I 
was looking for a new, peaceful and friendly place to live. I found it on Upper Berkeley Street. 
I'm just finishing up arranging. 
I am happy here and I cannot imagine a similar situation outside my windows, 
so I say absolutely NO. 
 
I do not support your proposal. 
 

Name:  

Address and/or Residents Association:  
 

 

Status: valid In support or opposed: opposed 

Received:  
 

10 May 2021 

Dear Sir, 
 
We are writing with regard to the application from the Home Grown Club ("the Club") - located 
at 44 Great Cumberland Place on the corners of Upper Berkeley Street and Brunswick Mews - 
for a variation of its license (application reference 21/03349/LIPV). 

page 16



 
We are a family of three, including a 2 year old toddler and we live at  as 
direct neighbours to the Club. 
 
We are strongly opposed to the Home Grown Club's application and we are herewith objecting 
to it for the following reasons. 
 
The use of the Home Grown Club's terrace, which backs on to Upper Berkeley Street and 
Brunswick Mews, is restricted by the Club's current license. The variation they have applied for 
would permit up to 25 people meeting, drinking, eating and smoking on their terrace between 
11am and 10pm seven days a week. 
 
We are seriously concerned about the impact this will have, with high levels of noise, having 
hospitality activity all day, every day, with the echo effect at the back of our house which will be 
inevitably very disruptive: 
 
1. Our toddler has his bedroom at the back side of our house, only few meters away from 

the Club's terrace. He would be seriously deprived of his sleep in the event you would 
grant the variation of the Club's license. 

2. I, his father, need to work from home every weekday, and at times over the weekend, 
including in the evening. This includes participating in about six video conferences per 
day. I would be seriously deprived of working effectively in the event you would grant the 
variation of the Club's license. 

3. We have a little terrace at the backside of our house, just below the Club's terrace. We 
would no longer be able to enjoy the piece and quiet of our terrace in the event you 
would grant the variation of the Club's license, leave alone the risk that our toddler, who 
plays with his toys on the terrace during summer, is hit by objects - including glass and 
cigarettes - due to either carelessness of guests and personnel of the Club or wind. We 
are truly worried in this respect as - in the past - we have already found small objects on 
the terrace, occasionally. 

4. All three of us suffer from allergies and conditions affecting the respiratory system. 
Constant exposure to smoke from guests of the Club smoking on the latter's terrace - all 
day long - risk seriously deteriorating our comfort and health in the event you would 
grant the variation of the Club's license. Please note that - on several occasions - we 
had to complain to the Club that members of their staff were smoking right in front of our 
house (and using parts of the Mews as place where to spend their breaks from work). 

 
Please allow us to insist that the Club does not appear to provide any service to the local 
community; the Club's remit is for visiting corporate events, inevitably amounting to noisy away-
days. 
 
Please take also into account that we had issues with noise from the club in the past, and we 
complained on several occasions. It goes without saying that we would be happy to share with 
you relevant email exchanges with the Club of 2019. 
 
We are also concerned that guests of the Club sitting on the terrace would have a direct view on 
our houses in both Upper Berkeley Street and Brunswick Mews, having a considerable negative 
impact on our security. 
Against this background, and based on the grave concerns we have that, if the variation of the 
Club's license were granted, the currently truly residential character of our neighbourhood here 
in Brunswick Mews would cease to exist, we are asking you most politely to reject the 
application of the Home Grown Club. You can rest assured that this would be in the very 
interest of the people living in this part of Marylebone, enjoying a neighbourhood built on 
respect for each other and the quiet and peace this enables.  
We are looking forward to your support and decision. 
 

page 17



Name:  

Address and/or Residents Association:  

Status: valid In support or opposed: opposed 

Received:  
 

10 May 2021 

THIS REPRESENTATION is made by the Marylebone Association, which is recognised by 
Westminster as the Amenity Society for the Marylebone Area south of Marylebone Road and so 
represents the interests of those who live and work in this area.   
 
We are writing to oppose the application by Home Grown Club 21/03349/LIPV as we believe 
that if granted it will be contrary to Westminster Policy PN1. 
 
We are supportive of the need for the hospitality and entertainments sectors to recover from the 
effects of the Covid lockdown. However, the licensing authority needs to balance the needs of 
business with the needs of residents and other businesses who live and operate in the 
surrounding area. 
 
This can be a difficult balance to get right which has caused the Association some debate. In 
order to resolve this we have followed the guidelines set out in the position document from the 
West End Community Network of which we are a member: The Licensing Act 2003 Applications 
for Later Hours for COVID recovery (attached). 
 
In brief, the document states that the Licensing Objectives as set out in the Licensing Act 2003 
are there to protect residents and others from harm and nuisance. There is no requirement 
within licensing legislation to promote the profitability or otherwise of businesses but there is a 
requirement for the Licensing Authority to have due regard to the 4 licensing objectives when 
considering the granting or extension of a license whether on a full time or temporary basis. 
 
It follows that the only circumstance under which an Application should be granted is if the 
Council is convinced that the licensing objectives will be positively promoted, as required by the 
legislation. In this case the level and number of objections from residents and business lead the 
Association to believe that local amenity will be harmed if the application is granted, even on the 
temporary basis requested. 
 
The Association therefore objects to the application as set out. 
 

Name:  

Address and/or Residents Association:  
 

 
 

Status: valid In support or opposed: support 

Received:  
 

17 April 2021 

I've no connection to the club but as a neighbour I fully support anything that can be done to 
help our local businesses. 
 

Name:  
 

Address and/or Residents Association:  

Status: valid In support or opposed: support 

page 18



Received:  
 

07 May 2021 

I am writing on behalf of the Baker Street Quarter Partnership (BakerStreetQ) to express our 
support for the proposal by Home Grown for a temporary variation of their trading hours within 
their outdoor courtyard area until 30 September 2021.  
 
BakerStreetQ is a Business Improvement District, established in 2013. We are a not-for-profit 
company directed by and funded by 165 local member businesses for the betterment of the 
area for those working here, running businesses here, and for the wider community following 
annually agreed programmes. 
 
The area we represent includes a range of hospitality and leisure businesses which collectively 
play a prominent role in helping to underpin the economic, cultural and social vitality and 
attractiveness of the area. In the context of 2020-21's health pandemic, an outdoor dining offer 
has developed from a 'nice to have' into a business necessity, allowing customers to maintain 
social distancing in open air spaces, while going some way to maintaining the economic viability 
of the hospitality trade in Westminster. Our surveys show that people will continue to feel more 
comfortable socialising outside for the foreseeable future, making a viable outdoor space a 
business necessity, at least until the weather begins to cool!  
Outdoor dining amenity is also key to attracting the footfall represented by the office community 
back to the area - which is in turn important in sustaining the wider retail offer. The top three 
elements office workers are looking forward to when they choose to be in the office centre 
around eating out and socialising. Our discussions with local residents over 2020 have also 
indicated strong support for local hospitality and a desire to see them remaining operational as 
a key amenity in the area. 
 
We have worked closely with Home Grown since they opened and with Home House as a 
founding member of the BID for over ten years and would like to note their contributions to the 
wider area. Through Home House, their funding of our services includes our street team patrols 
of the area (7 days a week 7am-11pm). Through this team, we gather information on issues in 
the area relating to anti-social behaviour, waste, environmental issues, crime and any premises 
not properly managing the same. We have observed Home Grown to be managed to a high 
standard. Home Grown has also supported our local community/giving programmes. They have 
proactively sought to employ local people with their recruitment events in Church Street prior to 
the launch of Home Grown for example. We know the team to spend considerable time and 
effort engaging with the local community, in particular their direct residential neighbours.  
Of course we are conscious that outdoor dining, while vital to the viability of hospitality 
businesses and the economic health of the area, must also be balanced with the comfort of 
local residents.  
We feel the proposed extension to outdoor evening trading for a temporary period coupled with 
the strong management regime provides this balance.  
I therefore encourage Westminster to approve this license extension. 
 

Name:  

Address and/or Residents Association:  
 
 

Status: valid In support or opposed: support 

Received:  
 

10 May 2021 

I am writing on behalf of the Marble Arch London BID to express our support for the proposal by 
Home Grown for a temporary variation of their trading hours within their outdoor courtyard until 
30 September 2021.  
 
Established in 2016, Marble Arch London BID is a not-for-profit company funded by 200 
member businesses for the improvement of the area.  

page 19



 
The area's hospitality businesses play a prominent role in creating a vibrant leisure and cultural 
hub with a historic significance that makes it one of London's most attractive places. In the 
context of the Covid-19 pandemic, outdoor space has become a lifeline for many hospitality 
businesses in London. It not only allows customers to maintain social distancing in open air 
spaces, but also helps maintain the economic viability of the hospitality trade in Westminster.  
 
A strong outdoor dining offer will also be essential to attracting the office community back to the 
area. Our discussions with our office-based members show that what they have missed the 
most while working from home is eating out and socialising with colleagues.  
 
Local residents have also shown strong support for hospitality businesses in 2020, shopping 
and dining locally to ensure the survival of much valued assets and amenities. 
 
We have worked closely with Home Grown since they opened in our BID area and have been 
impressed by the team's commitment to the local community, spending considerable time and 
effort engaging with their residential neighbours, recruiting locally and supporting fledgling start-
ups in Westminster.  
 
While outdoor dining will be crucial to the survival of hospitality businesses this Summer, we are 
aware that the comfort of local residents is also a priority. We believe the proposed extension to 
outdoor evening trading for a temporary period combined with the high standard of 
management from Home Grown provides the right balance 
 

 

3. Policy & Guidance 
 

The following policies within the City Of Westminster Statement of Licensing Policy apply: 
 

Policy HRS1 applies A. Applications within the core hours set out below in this policy will 
generally be granted for the relevant premises uses, subject to not 
being contrary to other policies in the Statement of Licensing Policy. 
B. Applications for hours outside the core hours set out in Clause C 
will be considered on their merits, subject to other relevant policies, 
and with particular regard to the following:  
1. The demonstration of compliance in the requirements of policies 
CD1, PS1, PN1 and CH1 associated with the likelihood of the effect 
of the grant of a licence for later or earlier hours on crime and 
disorder, public safety, public nuisance and the protection of children 
from harm.  
2. If the application is located within a Special Consideration Zone 
they have demonstrated that they have taken account of the issues 
identified in that area and provided adequate mitigation.  
3. Whether there is residential accommodation in the proximity of 
the premises that would likely be adversely affected by premises 
being open or carrying out operations at the hours proposed.  
4. The proposed hours of the licensable activities and when 
customers will be permitted to remain on the premises.  
5. The proposed hours when any music, including incidental music, 
will be played.  
6. The hours when customers will be allowed to take food or drink 
outside the premises or be within open areas which form part of the 
premises.  
7. The existing hours of licensable activities and the past operation 
of the premises (if any) and hours of licensable premises in the 
vicinity.  
8. Whether customers and staff have adequate access to public 

page 20



transport when arriving at and leaving the premises, especially at 
night.  
9. The capacity of the premises.  
10. The type of use, recognising that some venues are more likely to 
impact the licensing objectives than others; for example, pubs and 
bars are higher risk than theatres, cinemas and other cultural and 
sporting venues due to the nature of the operation.  
11. The Licensing Authority will take into account the active 
measures proposed for a ‘winding down’ period including 
arrangements for people to be collected from the premises to travel 
home safely.  
12. Conditions on hours may be attached that require that the supply 
of alcohol for consumption on the premises ceases a suitable period 
of time before customers are required to leave the premises.  
13. The council, acting as the Licensing Authority, may reduce hours 
if, after review, it is necessary to impose conditions specifying 
shorter hours in order to promote the licensing objectives.  
14. Specific days for non-standard hours should be identified and 
justified as part of the application to allow responsible authorities 
and interested parties to evaluate the impact that these licensable 
activities may have, and to plan accordingly. The consideration of 
applications for later hours for Bank Holiday Mondays will take into 
account that later hours are generally granted for preceding 
Sundays and that the next day is a working day. Non-specific days 
are expected to be covered by Temporary Event Notices or variation 
applications. 
 

Policy COMB1 applies A. Applications outside the West End Cumulative Impact Zone for 
premises that propose to operate as a ‘combined use premises’ will 
be considered on their merits and subject to:  
1. The application meeting the requirements of policies CD1, PS1, 
PN1 and CH1.  
2. The hours for licensable activities for the relevant use being within 
the council’s Core Hours Policy HRS1.  
3. The applicant has taken account of the Special Consideration 
Zone policy SCZ1 if the premises are located within a designated 
zone.  
B. Applications inside the West End Cumulative Impact Zones for 
premises that propose to operate as a ‘combined use premises’ will 
be considered on their merits and subject to:  
1. The application meeting the requirements of policies CD1, PS1, 
PN1 and CH1.  
2. The hours for licensable activities for the relevant premises use 
being within the council’s Core Hours Policy HRS1.  
3. The applicant demonstrating that they will not add to cumulative 
impact within the Cumulative Impact Zone.  
C. When considering what weight is to be given to the relevant uses 
and policies the Licensing Authority will take into account: 1. 
Whether it will undermine the licensing objectives.  
2. The current and proposed use of the premises.  
3. When those uses will take place.  
4. What the primary use of the premises is or the uses that will take 
place in different parts of that premises.  
5. Whether there would normally be a presumption to refuse an 
application for that use if it was operating as that premises type and 
not a combined use premises.  
6. Whether the hours sought for the all or parts of the premises are 

page 21



within or outside the Core Hours.  
D. The Licensing Authority will take into account, when considering 
the application, the relevant considerations from each of the 
appropriate premises uses policies within this statement  
E. For the purpose of this policy a Combined Use Premises means 
premises which require a premises licence and where there is more 
than one premises use, and where the uses are not dependent on/ 
or part of the other uses i.e. are not ancillary to the other uses 
 

 
 
4.         Equality Implications 
 

The Council in its capacity as Licensing Authority has a duty to have regard to  
its public sector equality duty under section 149 of the Equality Act 2010. In  
summary, section 149 provides that a Public Authority must, in the exercise of  
its functions, have due regard to the need to:  

 
(a) eliminate discrimination harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that 
is prohibited by or under this Act;  
(b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it; and  
(c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristics and persons who do not share it.  

Section 149 (7) of the Equality Act 2010 defines the relevant protected characteristics as 
age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and 
maternity, race, religion or belief, sex, and sexual orientation. 

 

5. Appendices 
 

Appendix 1 
 

Premises licence 19/09266/LIPDPS 

Appendix 2 
 

Applicant supporting documents 
 

Appendix 3 
 

Supporting documents from the Marylebone Association 

Appendix 4 
 

Supporting documents from  
 

Appendix 5 
 

Premises history 

Appendix 6 
 

Proposed conditions 

Appendix 7 Residential map and list of premises in the vicinity 
 

 

Report author: Kevin Jackaman 
Senior Licensing Officer 

Contact: Telephone: 0207 641 6500 
Email: kjackaman@westminster.gov.uk 

 

page 22



If you have any queries about this report or wish to inspect one of the background 
papers please contact the report author. 

Background Documents – Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1972 

1 Licensing Act 2003 N/A 

2 City of Westminster Statement of Licensing 
Policy  

7th January 2021 

3 Amended Guidance issued under section 182 of 
the Licensing Act 2003  

April 2018 

4 Environmental Health Representation 10 May 2021 

5 Interested Party Representation (1)  09 May 2021 

6 Interested Party Representation (2) 29 April 2021 

7 Interested Party Representation (3) 30 April 2021 

8 Interested Party Representation (4) 30 April 2021 

9 Interested Party Representation (5) 30 April 2021 

10 Interested Party Representation (6) 02 May 2021 

11 Interested Party Representation (7) 04 May 2021 

12 Interested Party Representation (8) 05 May 2021 

13 Interested Party Representation (9) 06 May 2021 

14 Interested Party Representation (10) 06 May 2021 

15 Interested Party Representation (11) 06 May 2021 

16 Interested Party Representation (12) 06 May 2021 

17 Interested Party Representation (13) 06 May 2021 

18 Interested Party Representation (14) 07 May 2021 

19 Interested Party Representation (15) 07 May 2021 

20 Interested Party Representation (16) 09 May 2021 

21 Interested Party Representation (17) 10 May 2021 

22 Interested Party Representation (18) 10 May 2021 

23 Interested Party Representation (19) 17 April 2021 

24 Interested Party Representation (20) 07 May 2021 

25 Interested Party Representation (21) 10 May 2021 

page 23



 
Premises Licence 1909266/LIPDPS                          Appendix 1 
 

 

page 24



 

page 25



 

page 26



 

page 27



 

page 28



 

page 29



 

page 30



 

page 31



 

page 32



 

page 33



 

page 34



 
 

page 35



 

 

page 36



 

page 37



 

page 38



 

page 39



 

page 40



 

page 41



 

page 42



Applicant supporting documents                     Appendix 2 
 
Terrace photographs 
 

 
 

 

page 43



 
 

 

page 44



 

 
 

 

page 45



 

 

page 46



Additional documents from The Marylebone Association                  Appendix 3 
 

 

page 47



 

 

page 48



 

page 49



 

page 50



 

page 51



Additional documents from                     Appendix 4 
 

 

page 52



 
 

page 53



 

page 54



 

page 55



 

page 56



 

page 57



 

page 58



 
page 59



 
page 60



 

page 61



 

page 62



 

page 63



 
 

 

page 64



 
 

 

page 65



Appendix 5 

 
Licence & Appeal History  

 

 

 
Application 
 

 
Details of 
Application 

 
Date Determined 

 
Decision 

12/03933/LIPN New premises Licence 05.07.2012 Granted by Licensing 
Sub Committee 

12/06155/LIPDPS Variation of DPS 30.07.2012 Granted under 
delegated authority 

14/05076/LIPT Transfer - New 
Cavendish Club to The 
Portman Estate 
Nominees (one) Ltd 

09.07.2014 Granted under 
delegated authority 

15/11098/LIPT Transfer - The Portman 
Estate Nominees (one) 
Ltd to Quintillion 
Restaurants Ltd 

17.02.2016 Granted under 
delegated authority 

15/11109/LIPDPS Variation of DPS 17.02.2016 Granted under 
delegated authority 

15/11137/LIPV Variation of the 
premises licence – 
removal of conditions 

04.02.2016 Granted by Licensing 
Sub Committee 

18/05022/LIPV Full variation – change 
of layout and 
amendment of 
conditions 

26.06.2018 Granted under 
delegated authority 

19/03422/LIPDPS Variation of DPS 07.06.2019 Granted under 
delegated authority 

19/04555/LIPVM Minor variation – 
Amend conditions 

10.05.2019 Refused under 
delegated authority 

19/06287/LIPVM Minor variation – 
Amend conditions 

10.06.2019 Granted under 
delegated authority 

19/09266/LIPDPS Variation of DPS 01.08.2019 Granted under 
delegated authority 

 
There is no appeal history 

page 66



Appendix 6 

 
CONDITIONS CONSISTENT WITH THE OPERATING SCHEDULE AND CONDITIONS 
PROPOSED BY A PARTY TO THE HEARING  
 
 
When determining an application for a new premises licence under the provisions of the 
Licensing Act 2003, the licensing authority must, unless it decides to reject the application, grant 
the licence subject to the conditions which are indicated as mandatory in this schedule. 
 
At a hearing the licensing authority may, in addition, and having regard to any representations 
received, grant the licence subject to such conditions which are consistent with the operating 
schedule submitted by the applicant as part of their application, or alter or omit these conditions, 
or add any new condition to such extent as the licensing authority considers appropriate for the 
promotion of the licensing objectives. 
 
This schedule lists those conditions which are consistent with the operating schedule, or 
proposed as appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives by a responsible authority 
or an interested party as indicated. These conditions have not been submitted by the licensing 
service but reflect the positions of the applicant, responsible authority or interested party and 
have not necessarily been agreed 
 
Conditions: On Current Licence -  
 
Mandatory: 
 

1. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when there is no designated premises 
supervisor in respect of this licence. 

 
2. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when the designated premises supervisor 

does not hold a personal licence or the personal licence is suspended. 
 
3. Every supply of alcohol under this licence must be made or authorised by a person who 

holds a personal licence. 
 
4.          (1)  The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry 

out, arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the 
premises. 

 
(2)  In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the 

following activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of 
encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises— 

 
(a)  games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require 

or encourage, individuals to; 
 

(i)  drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol 
sold or supplied on the premises before the cessation of the period in 
which the responsible person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or 

(ii)  drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or 
otherwise); 

 
(b)  provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or 

discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in 
a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective; 

 

page 67



(c)  provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage 
or reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or 
less in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing 
objective; 

 
(d)  selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, 

or in the vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to 
condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects 
of drunkenness in any favourable manner; 

 
 (e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than 

where that other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of a 
disability). 

 
5.  The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to 

customers where it is reasonably available. 
 
6.          (1)  The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that 

an age verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the 
sale or supply of alcohol. 

 
(2)  The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must 

ensure that the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with 
the age verification policy. 

 

(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be 

under 18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to 

produce on request, before being served alcohol, identification bearing their 

photograph, date of birth and either— 

 (a)  a holographic mark, or 

 (b)  an ultraviolet feature. 

 
7.  The responsible person must ensure that— 

(a)  where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on 

the premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up 

in advance ready for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is available 

to customers in the following measures— 

  (i)  beer or cider: ½ pint;  

(ii)  gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and 

   (iii)  still wine in a glass: 125 ml; 

 
(b)  these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material 

which is available to customers on the premises; and 
 
(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of 

alcohol to be sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are 
available. 

 
A responsible person in relation to a licensed premises means the holder of the premise licence 
in respect of the premises, the designated premises supervisor (if any) or any individual aged 
18 or over who is authorised by either the licence holder or designated premises supervisor.  

page 68



For premises with a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the 
premises in a capacity that which enables him to prevent the supply of alcohol. 
 
8(i) A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or 

off the premises for a price which is less than the permitted price. 
 
8(ii) For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 8(i) above - 
 

(a)  "duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 
1979; 

 
(b)  "permitted price" is the price found by applying the formula - 

 
P = D+(DxV) 

 
Where - 

  
(i) P is the permitted price, 
(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty     

were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and 
(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if 

the value added tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the 
alcohol; 

 
(c)  "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in 

force a premises licence - 
   

(i)  the holder of the premises licence, 
(ii)  the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, 

or 
(iii)  the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of    

alcohol under such a licence; 
 

(d)   "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in 
force a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the 
premises in a capacity which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply 
in question; and 

 
(e)  "value added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value 

Added Tax Act 1994. 
 
8(iii). Where the permitted price given by Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above would (apart from this 

paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph 
shall be taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the 
nearest penny. 

 
8(iv).     (1)  Sub-paragraph 8(iv)(2) below applies where the permitted price given by 

Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above on a day ("the first day") would be different from the 
permitted price on the next day ("the second day") as a result of a change to the 
rate of duty or value added tax. 

(2)  The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or 
supplies of alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days 
beginning on the second day. 

 
Annex 2 – Conditions consistent with the operating Schedule 
 
9.  There shall be no consumption of alcohol in the light well.  

page 69



10. The number of persons accommodated at any one time, (excluding staff) shall not 
exceed:  
• Basement - 150 persons  
• Ground -200 persons  

• First Floor -150 persons  
 

With no more than 409 persons across these floors at any one time (this does not 
include the hotel bedrooms). 

 
Annex 3 – Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority 
 
11.  Licensable activities may not be provided other than to:  

i. Members (and their bone fide guests) of the Home Grown Club as defined in the 
Home Grown Club Rules. Any changes to these rules must be notified to the Police and 
Licensing Authority.  
ii. Persons attending pre-booked private events, a record of which will be kept on site for 
a minimum period of 31 days after the event, and made available on request to 
authorised officers from the Police and Council. The record shall include the details of 
the organiser, type of event, number of people, timings and date.  
iii. Persons using the bedroom facilities and their bona fide guests.  
 

12.  Licensable activities are not permitted on any external terrace or light well.  
 
13.  Regulated entertainment shall only be permitted in the following rooms:  

• Basement: Event Room - Montagu Suite, Montagu Lounge  
• Ground Floor: Georgian, Blandford, The Restaurant, The Study Café, The Seymour 
Room  

• First floor: Salon, Secret Salon, The Unicorn Bar, The Club Room / Lounge, Portman 
Room / Lounge”  

 
14.  Arrangements will be made to ensure that any capacity limit set for the premises can be 

properly monitored. Information regarding the capacity should be given to an authorised 
officer on request.  

 
15.  Substantial food and non-intoxicating beverages shall be available throughout the 

permitted hours in all parts of the premises where alcohol is sold or supplied for 
consumption on the premises.  

 
16.  All sales of alcohol for consumption off the premises shall be in sealed containers only, 

and shall not be consumed on the premises.  
 
17.  With the exception of residents and their bona fide guests, no alcohol shall be consumed 

more than 30 minutes after the permitted hours for the supply of alcohol. 
  
18.  The provision of alcohol shall be ancillary to food between 07:00 and 10:00 hours for 

non-residents.  
 
19.  No drinks shall be consumed outside the premises nor glasses/bottles removed from the 

premises by patrons when leaving, save for off sales in sealed containers, and patrons 
using the terrace.  

 
20.  Loudspeakers shall not be located in the entrance lobby or outside the premises 

building.  
 
21.  All windows and external doors to areas where regulated entertainment is permitted 

shall be kept closed at any time when regulated entertainment takes place, except for 
the immediate access and egress of persons.  

page 70



22.  No noise shall emanate from the premises nor vibration be transmitted through the 
structure of the premises which gives rise to a nuisance.  

 
23.  Notices shall be prominently displayed at all exits requesting patrons to respect the 

needs of local residents and leave the area quietly.  
 
24.       Notices shall be prominently displayed at any area used for smoking requesting patrons 

to respect the needs of local residents and use the area quietly.  
 
25.       No deliveries shall be made to the premises between 23:00 and 08:00 hours.  
 
26. The licence holder shall enter into an agreement with a hackney carriage and/or private 

carriage firm to provide transport for customers, with contact numbers made readily 
available to customers who will be encouraged to use such services.  

 
27.     All waste shall be properly presented and placed out for collection no earlier than 30 

minutes before the scheduled collection times.  
 
28. No rubbish, including bottles, shall be moved, removed or placed in outside areas 

between 2300 hours and 0800 hours. 
 
29.       The pavement from the building line to the kerb edge immediately outside the premises, 

including gutter / channel at its junction with the kerb edge, shall be swept and or 
washed, and litter and sweepings collected and stored in accordance with the approved 
refuse storage arrangements.  

 
30. A sound limiting device located in a separate and remote lockable cabinet from the 

volume control shall be fitted to any musical amplification system and set at a level 
determined by and to the satisfaction of an authorised officer of the Environmental 
Health Service to ensure that no noise nuisance is caused to local residents. The 
operational panel of the noise limiter shall then be secured to the satisfaction of officer 
from the Environmental Health Service. The keys securing the noise limiter cabinet shall 
be held by the licence holder or authorised manager only, and shall not be accessed by 
any other person. The limiter shall not be altered without prior agreement with the 
Environmental Health Service. 

  
31. The approved arrangements at the premises, including means of escape provisions, 

emergency warning and emergency equipment, the electrical installation and 
mechanical equipment, shall at all material times be maintained in good condition and 
full working order.  

 
32. The means of escape provided for the premises shall be maintained unobstructed, free 

of trip hazards, be immediately available and clearly identified in accordance with the 
plans provided.  

 
33. All exit doors shall be available at all material times without the use of a key, code, card 

or similar means.  
 
34. All emergency doors will be maintained effectively self-closing, and not held open other 

than by an approved device.  
 
35. The edge of the treads of steps and stairways shall be maintained so as to be 

conspicuous.  
 
36. Only hangings, curtains, upholstery and temporary decorations, complying with the 

relevant British (or where appropriate European) Standard shall be used. Where 

page 71



necessary these shall be periodically tested for flame resistance and re-treated as 
necessary.  

 
37. Curtains and hangings shall be arranged so as not to obstruct safety signs other 

emergency equipment.  
 
38. Any special effects or mechanical installations shall be arranged and stored so as to 

minimise any risk to the safety of those using the premises. The following special effects 
will only be used on 7 days prior notice being given to Westminster City Council 
Consultation Team where consent has not previously been given. 
a.  dry ice and cryogenic fog;  
b.  smoke machines and fog generators;  
c.  pyrotechnics including fire works;  
d.  firearms;  
e. lasers; 
f.  explosives and highly flammable substances;  
g.  real flame;  
h.  strobe lighting.  

 
39. No person shall give at the premises any exhibition, demonstration or performance of 

hypnotism, mesmerism or any similar act or process which produces or is intended to 
produce in any other person any form of induced sleep or trance in which susceptibility 
of the mind of that person to suggestion or direction is increased or intended to be 
increased.  

             
NOTE: (1) This rule does not apply to exhibitions given under the provisions of Section 
2(1A) and 5 of the Hypnotism Act 1952.  

 
40. An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request to an 

authorised officer of the City Council or the Police, which will record the following:  
 

(a)  all crimes reported to the venue  
(b)  all ejections of patrons  
(c)  any complaints received regards crime and disorder  
(d)  any incidents of disorder  
(e)  seizures of drugs or offensive weapons  
(f)  any refusal of the sale of alcohol  
(g) any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service.  

 
41. The certificates listed below shall be submitted to Westminster City Council Consultation 

Team upon written request:  
a.  Any emergency lighting battery or system  
b.  Any electrical installation  
c.  Any fire alarm system.  

 
42. A log shall be kept detailing all refused sales of alcohol. The log should include the date 

and time of the refused sale and the name of the member of staff who refused the sale. 
The log shall be available for inspection at the premises by the police or an authorised 
officer of the City Council at all times whilst the premises is open.  

 
43. The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system as per the 

minimum requirements of a Metropolitan Police Crime Prevention Officer. All entry and 
exit points will be covered enabling frontal identification of every person entering in any 
light condition. The CCTV system shall continually record whilst the premises is open for 
licensable activities and during all times when customers remain on the premises. All 
recordings shall be stored for a minimum period of 31 days with date and time stamping. 

page 72



Recordings shall be made available immediately upon the request of Police or 
authorised officer throughout the preceding 31 day period.  

 
44. A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of the CCTV 

system shall be on the premises at all times when the premises are open to the public. 
This staff member shall be able to show Police recent data or footage with the absolute 
minimum of delay when requested. 

 
45. No entertainment, performance, service, or exhibition involving nudity or sexual 

stimulation which would come within the definition of a sex establishment in Schedule 3 
to the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 as amended by the 
Greater London Council (General Powers) Act 1986 (whether or not locally adopted), 
shall be provided.  

 
46. There shall be no striptease or nudity, and all persons shall be decently attired at all 

times, except in the guest bedrooms.  
 
47. A proof of age scheme, such as Challenge 21, shall be operated at the premises where 

the only acceptable forms of identification are recognised photographic identification 
cards, such as a driving licence or passport.  

 
48. A direct telephone number for the manager at the premises shall be publicly available at 

all times the premises is open. This telephone number is to be made available to 
residents in the vicinity.  

 
49. As soon as possible, and in any event within 1 month from the grant of this licence, the 

premises shall join the local pubwatch, clubwatch or other local crime reduction scheme 
approved by the police, and local radio scheme if available.  

 
50. The hours for licensable activities may be extended from the end of permitted hours on 

New Year's Eve to the start of permitted hours on New Year's Day. 
 
51. Any external terrace areas may only be used for the consumption of alcohol on Fridays 

and Saturdays; 
 
52. The supply of alcohol for consumption on the terrace must be by waiter or waitress 

service only; 
 
53. Any external terrace areas shall be vacated by 7pm save for persons using the area to 

smoke; 
 
54. No more than ten persons, excluding staff, shall be permitted on the first floor terrace at 

any one time. 
 
55. There shall be no access to any external terrace before 10:00 Monday to Sunday. 
 
The applicant is proposing the following additional condition 
 
56. No more than 25 patrons (who shall be seated) may occupy the terrace between 11.00 

and 22.00 on any day until 30th September 2021 when this condition shall cease to 
have effect. 

 

 

page 73



 
Residential Map and List of Premises in the Vicinity       Appendix 7 

 

 
Resident Count: 202 

 
 

Licensed premises with 75m of 44 Great Cumberland Place, London 
 

Licence Number Trading Name Address Premises Type Time Period 

18/15173/LIPDPS The Arch 

50 Great 
Cumberland 
Place London 
W1H 7FD 

Hotel, 4+ star or 
major chain 

Monday to 
Sunday; 
00:00 - 00:00 

17/05074/LIPDPS 

Shaftesbury 
Suites Marble 
Arch 

41 Great 
Cumberland 
Place London 
W1H 7LG 

Hotel, 4+ star or 
major chain 

Monday to 
Sunday; 
00:00 - 00:00 

17/05077/LIPDPS 

Montcalm Hotel 
And Grand 
Ballroom 

2 Wallenberg 
Place City Of 
Westminster 
London W1H 
7TN 

Hotel, 4+ star or 
major chain 

Monday to 
Sunday; 
00:00 - 00:00 

17/05081/LIPDPS 

The Marble Arch 
By Montcalm 
London 

31 Great 
Cumberland 
Place London 
W1H 7TA Restaurant 

Monday to 
Sunday; 
00:00 - 00:00 

page 74



 

page 75



This page is intentionally left blank



page 77

Agenda Item 2.



page 78



page 79



page 80



page 81



page 82



page 83



page 84



page 85



page 86



page 87



page 88



page 89



page 90



page 91



page 92



 

 

PN1 (1) (2) (3) and Appendix 11. 
 
This business will operate directly beneath and opposite residential properties.  Lupus Street is 
very quiet in the evenings as noted by the Appeals Inspector in the recent 
APP/X5990/W/19/3234214 – Cafe de Borek, 52 Lupus Street which intended to trade from 10 
am to 10 pm: 
 
‘Noise and Odour 
 
17.  There are residential properties directly above and opposite the appeal premises and during 
my site visit, I did not note any evening or late night uses in the immediate vicinity.  Although 
situated on a fairly busy road I would therefore expect pedestrian and vehicular activity to reduce 
and the area to be quieter throughout the evening. 
 
18.  Noise is likely to result from customers arriving at and departing from the appeal premises, 
talking and possibly congregating in groups on the footway outside.  In addition, noise may well 
arise from staff legitimately engaged in activities such as clearing away and locking up the 
premises at closing time.  Such noise will occur directly beneath the windows of the upper floor 
flats and in close proximity to other neighbouring residential properties.  This will be more 
intrusive in the evening when background noise levels are likely to be lower.  Residents have a 
reasonable expectation that their living accommodation should be quieter at this time: indeed, I 
note representations from neighbours in this regard. 
 
19.  For the reasons set out above I conclude that the development has a harmful effect on the 
living conditions of the occupants of neighbouring residential properties with regard to noise and 
local environmental quality. 
 
24.  The current use of the appeal premises may well provide a valuable community and social 
facility for all its customers.  However, the adverse impacts set out above outweigh any such 
benefits.’ 
 
Neate House is not sound-insulated and cannot withstand the inevitable noise nuisance the 
granting of an on-license will cause.  ‘Background music’ is proposed which will increase public 
chatter as the evening proceeds.  Smoking beneath residential windows is an environmental 
health issue which will prevent residents above from opening their windows.   
 
These windows are only a few feet above pavement level.  The pavement seating on the Lupus 
Street and St George’s Drive sides of Neate House completely surrounds both sides of the 
corner flat directly above so that the resident has nowhere to go to escape the noise and smoke 
rising from beneath.  (Photos pages 5 & 6).   
 
The Applicant has placed 6 tables with 3 chairs each on Lupus St and 3 tables with 3 chairs on 
St George’s Drive and with the 25 he proposes inside the shop this makes a total of 52 seats.  
(Photos pages 5 & 6). This overwhelms the area and is an eyesore in the Pimlico Conservation 
Area to the detriment of residential amenity and the surrounding neighbourhood.   
 
The proposed pavement seating will cause an obstruction on the public highway and is not at the 
required 1.8 m distance from the kerb. Patrons frequently reposition the seats.  (Photo page 7).  
It is too close to pinch points at a 20 mph traffic speed sign, a lamp standard and to two Pelican 
crossings.  These are used by primary school children who will pass patrons drinking on the 
pavement.  (Photos pages 8 & 9). The previous lessee introduced such seating and received an 
WCC Enforcement Notice to remove it.   
 
The Applicant lays claim to the forecourt of the premises but under Section 31 of the Highways 
Act 1980 it has been in uninterrupted public use for over 40 years and is therefore deemed 
highway. 
 

page 93



 

 

The premises are surrounded by floor-to-ceiling glass windows on both Lupus St and St 
George’s Drive.  The light spill late at night will be of particular nuisance to residents in the 
terrace immediately opposite where there are living rooms and children’s bedrooms.   
 
The new Delicias delicatessen only two doors away at 58-60 Lupus St has (with residents’ 
strong opposition) been granted an off-license to trade until 20:00 hrs with conditions that no 
alcohol may be consumed on the premises or on the forecourt and pavement seating must be 
removed by 18:00 hrs and fascia lights turned off.  There is no justification for an exception in 
this case. 
 
What happens on the Neate House parade has the disadvantage of being audible, visible and 
inescapable for the residents in the terrace opposite.  This is due to the windows of pavement 
level commercial units being face-to-face with pavement level residential windows immediately 
opposite.  A situation which does not exist in any other section of Lupus Street. 
 
This Local Area Shopping Centre is largely residential.  This proposal will totally change the tone 
and character of the neighbourhood to its detriment and is harmful to residents. 
 
The policy to support the local economy has overlooked the need to protect local residents who 
since the introduction of Use Class E have become an irrelevance in their own homes. 
 
I therefore request that this application is REFUSED. 

  

page 94



 

 

  

 
 
Further submissions received from the Interested Party on 25th April 2021. 
 
Further to my email and attachment submitted on April 14th 2021 in objection to the above 
application (acknowledged April 15th) I am submitting further material following current 

page 95



 

 

developments at the Applicant’s premises.   
 
PREVENTION OF CRIME AND DISORDER 
 
The photograph on page 3 shows that the tables and chairs formerly situated on St George’s 
Drive have been relocated on to Lupus Street and there are now 9 tables and 18 chairs 
crammed onto the pavement causing severe overcrowding.  The Applicant has no pavement 
license and this was reported as long ago as August 19th 2020. 
 
Lupus Street is not a designated area for the temporary relaxation of outdoor hospitality seating 
during the Covid emergency. 
 
It is the Applicant’s intention to provide alcoholic drink both indoors and outdoors and the 
proximity of patrons so closely packed is an invitation to anti-social behaviour. 
 
PUBLIC SAFETY 
 
The photograph on page 4 shows that Brewhouse customers are using the public highway to 
park bicycles against the Pelican Crossing preventing public access to the push-button control 
panel.  This is a serious concern for public safety.   
 
The photograph on page 5 shows that table service is in progress and the waitress is using the 
public highway to reach the tables.  This is a health and safety issue as liquids are being served 
and this is causing an obstruction to passers-by.  If an on-license is granted this will become a 
matter for serious concern when alcohol is served. 
 
PUBLIC NUISANCE 
 
The conversations and mobile calls of customers seated outside the premises can be clearly 
heard from within my property.  This is an inescapable nuisance and alcohol will encourage 
patrons to talk over each other thus depriving residents of the quiet they are entitled to expect 
during the evenings. 
 
Please refuse this application. 

 

page 96



page 97



 

 

The ground floor, 52 Lupus Street, is the last shop unit to the East within the linear “Lupus Street 
Local Shopping Centre” located on the North side of Lupus Street.  This short parade of shops, 
52-62 Lupus Street has 3 floors of residential apartments above, Neate House, with residential 
immediately adjacent on St George’s Drive and opposite from basement upwards.  Neate House 
is expressly listed in the Pimlico Conservation Audit document as an “unlisted building of merit”.  
See Appendix. 
 
As a non-core frontage within a “local shopping centre” it ranks next to the bottom of the Town 
Centre Hierarchy retail space as set out in Westminster’s City Plan (sitting immediately above 
the lowest category – individual corner shops). 
52 Lupus Street lies within Pimlico CAZ (non Core frontage) and is wholly situated within the 
Pimlico Conservation Area.  See Maps within the Appendix. 
No 52 is a corner property at the busy junction of Claverton Street, Lupus Street with a return 
frontage on St George’s Drive, opposite Pimlico Academy and Pimlico Primary School and 
adjacent to two busy Pelican crossings (St George’s Drive and Lupus Street). 
It is simply the wrong location for an alcoholic establishment. 
 
Background.  Licensing & Planning History 
For many years, the unit was a convenience store, a local corner shop, closed August 2014.  
Then the ground floor became Gees Chemist (2014-2017) and most recently a “shop” trading as 
Café de Borek (Sept 2018 – Nov 2019).  
 
The current occupiers trading as Brewhouse opened August 2020.  
 
The basement is currently occupied by a Physiotherapy practice. 
 
The current occupier and licence applicant is Merano Ltd t/a Brewhouse, incorporated 31/1/2018 
with Mr Gary Hibberd as sole registered director according to Companies House.   
 
It is a coffee shop.  According to their website, the trading hours are from 8am – 6pm 
daily, however Instagram and their own Brewhouse website has the coffee shop closing 
at 4.30pm. 
 
 
Licensing History 
As a local corner convenience shop (closed August 2014), the premises benefitted from an off 
sales alcohol licence only, as ancillary to the sale of usual corner shop goods.   
 
Most Recent Planning History 
Although the recent revision of the Use Class Order has propelled this unit into the new Use 
Class E, allowing the operation of the premises as a café, the past planning decisions – all 
refused : 2 at WCC planning committee hearings AND on appeal by the Appeals Inspectorate 
(25/11/2019), remain relevant due to the explained reasons for refusal. 
 
18/10574/FULL.  Use of Ground Floor as sandwich bar and café (Sui Generis) (Retrospective).  
Dated 14/12/2018.  Refused. 
 
This decision was appealed to the Planning Inspectorate. 
Reference 19/00748/TPREF.  Appeal Dismissed. 
Reasons for this dismissed appeal were: 

1) Land Use (revisions to the Use Class Order have made this reason “redundant”) 
2) Impact on residential amenity.  Still relevant. Refer to extract from Planning 

Inspectorates decision in appendices. 
 
18/02472/FULL.  Use of Ground Floor as a mixed retail/restaurant use (Sui Generis) with new 
ducting at the rear and retractable awnings to the front and side elevation”.  Dated 27/3/2018 
Refused at committee hearing. 

page 98



 

 

 
18/02473/ADV.  Display of 3 no. Externally illuminated fascia signs.  27/3/2018.   
Permitted. (But not implemented). 
 
The Application 
As it is written, the licence application, if granted, would permit the premises to operate 
as a pub/wine bar/drinking establishment ON and OFF premises. (Notwithstanding 
necessary planning permission – change of use from Use Class E to “Sui generis”) 
 
The applicants, Merano Ltd, wish for both ON and OFF alcohol sales from 11am to 11pm 
daily (until 9pm on Sunday) and include the use of an outside area for tables and chairs for 
drinking alcohol. 
 
The application is deficient in detail.   
The following reports must be provided by the applicant for consideration in accordance with 
WCC SoLP:  
 

• Operational Schedule & Statement 

• Waste Management Plan/Schedule 

• Inside seating plan (stated 25 covers) 

• Outside seating plan (in accordance with WCC guidelines), currently operating 26 covers. 

• Acoustic/noise report 

• Policy to protect children from harm 

• Policy to protect residential amenity 
 
No reference is made to the “type” of alcohol to be sold or served.  No mention of type of 
containers, draught? ABV?    
 
It appears that either an “on” or “off” premises licence (or both) for this coffee shop/café  
UNTIL 11PM will result in an “alcohol led premises” rather than a business with an 
ancillary offering of alcohol. 
 
It should be noted that according to the Brewhouse (Pimlico) Facebook page, the 
premises is referred to as a bar.   
 
Reasons for Objection 
 
Public Safety 
The location of the café is wholly unsuitable for an on premises licence.  The positioning and use 
of the public highway for tables and chairs so close to two pelican crossings and other street 
furniture will cause an obstruction to pedestrians.  No plan is provided. In particular no 
measurement is given regarding the close 20mph speed sign (within 1.8m),  the street light and 
Pelican crossings.  These Pelican crossings are regularly used by primary school children in 
their classes, in pairs, escorted by their teachers. 
The premises are directly below, opposite and adjacent to residential units. 
 
No plan is provided illustrating the extent of the pavement that will be used, nor the number of 
proposed covers nor where the tables and chairs will be stored overnight. 
The applicant includes an extract from the Land Registry in order to illustrate a “private forecourt” 
with the clear intention to use it for the consumption of alcohol.   
The applicant has placed 9 tables with 26 chairs outside the premises.  (During Coronavirus 
pandemic).  This is excessive and may be considered overcrowding with the potential for crime 
and disorder, public safety issues etc. 
 
Deemed Highway 
However, this area is considered “deemed highway” under S31 Highways  Act 1980 as it has 
been used and accessed by the public for well in excess of 20 years.    

page 99



 

 

The use of the outside area and placement of tables and chairs has the potential to block the 
access to the Neate house apartments on the upper floors and obstruct any emergency 
evacuation (against. PS1).  Indeed the Land Registry plan submitted actually includes the 
entrance to Flats 1-6 Neate House! 
  
Prevention of Crime and Disorder 
Any consumption of alcohol, especially later into the evening/night has the acknowledged 
potential to lead to an increase in crime and disorder.  Of the c370 crimes committed in February 
2021, within 0.5 of a mile, over half related to anti-social behaviour.   
 
Licensing Hours 
The hours applied for are excessive, until 11pm.   Similar to pub opening hours.  The 
proposed hours are significantly at odds with the coffee shop/café actual trading hours.   
All the shops in this parade, including the application premises, close at 6pm at the latest. 
Therefore this application is against HRS1 (E14) “Applicants are encouraged not to apply for 
later hours than they will in fact trade.” 
 
Protection of Children from Harm 
No operating schedule is provided nor any policy supplied to protect children from harm. 
 
It is inappropriate to have an all day drinking establishment so close to 3 schools in a residential 
area.  Two schools, Pimlico Academy and Pimlico Primary are immediately opposite the 
premises with Churchill Gardens Primary Academy a stones throw away.   See Map.   
As mentioned above, the two adjacent Pelican crossings are used by primary school children, in 
pairs, in “crocodile” formation supervised by their teachers.  (See photos) 
Children will be exposed to potentially increasingly rowdy noisy customers outside, drinking and 
smoking all day.  See photos. 
 
The licence, as applied for, could result in a premises that “morphs” into a bar (alcohol 
led premises) later in the day.  There is no policy provided to protect children eg a time when, 
say under 16s will not be permitted at the premises. (Contrary to CH1 and COMB1). 
 
Public Nuisance 
This application fails to promote the prevention of public nuisance.  Policy PN1 is a key 
consideration. 
“The potential for nuisance associated with the style, characteristics and activities of the 
business to be carried on at the premises and the potential steps which could be taken to 
reduce the risk of nuisance occurring.  This will particularly apply in areas of residential 
accommodation and where there is residential accommodation in the proximity of the 
premises.” 
 
The application fails to illustrate and promote/comply with SoLP  PN1 (C14, C15, C16, 
C17, C18, C22) 
 
The applicant has failed to provide any plan/policy to protect residential amenity and avoid public 
nuisance.  
 
Waste Management/Recycling/Servicing Plan 
There is NO waste/recycling operational statement included in this application.  
Imagine the noise  of glass bottles being thrown into a metal bin in a residential area at 11.15pm!   
 
Waste collection and recycling collection has the potential to cause a nuisance.  There are no 
proposed conditions, so does the applicant intend to use the City Council waste service? 
 
Operating Schedule 
None provided.  Is this a Shop? Café? Restaurant? Bar? Pub? 
The licence application as it stands would mean the premises could operate as an all day 

page 100



 

 

drinking establishment with 25 covers inside with a further 26 outside. 
 
Environment & Noise 
No acoustic/noise report is provided.  However such a report should accompany this application. 
 
See Licensing Policy, Appendix 11. (5) 
“All applicants must provide a statement demonstrating how they do or do  not comply 
with the following criteria.  A noise report will not usually be required where all the 
following criteria are met”. 
The following stipulated criteria is NOT met. 
(D) There are no noise sensitive properties above below adjacent opposite in the 
proximity of the premises or otherwise likely to be affected.” 
 
The premises are situated immediately below residential accommodation “Neate House” with 
more residential properties opposite and adjacent.  Therefore classed as “noise sensitive 
properties”. 
 
Local residents have a reasonable expectation (and a legal right) of “quiet enjoyment”.   
In Summer 2018, the then occupants of this shop placed tables and chairs outside.  This 
resulted in many complaints of both noise and customers/staff smoking outside with residents 
unable to open their windows due to “second hand” smoke.  These complaints are documented 
in the planning sub-committee reports and actioned by local Councillors.  The placement of 
tables and chairs outside the premises was refused by WCC. 
 
The potential for noise nuisance and negative impact on residential amenity was highlighted by 
the independent Planning Appeals Inspectorate in the written report dated 25/11/2019.  The 
impact on residential amenity was one of the reasons why the appeal was dismissed.  Extract 
attached. Reference 19/00748/TPREF. 
 
In addition to general chatter/mobile phone usage and smoking nuisance, the applicant also 
wishes to play “background music”.  This also will create noise nuisance.  Neate House has no 
sound insulation and noise will be transmitted through the fabric of the building. 
 
Off Premises Alcohol Sales 
Pimlico  fail to understand how off licence sales of alcohol can be ancillary to a coffee 
shop. 
 
There are numerous shops within the Lupus Street Local Shopping Centre, including a Tesco 
Metro, a mini supermarket and delicatessens where it is possible to purchase alcohol “off 
premises”.  All alcohol sales are ancillary to their main business. 
 
The most recent licensing decision (at WCC Committee hearing), in January 2021 relates 
to 58-60 Lupus Street, a delicatessen, just a couple of doors down from this premises 
application.  An “off” premises only licence was granted until 8pm (as ancillary use) with 
strict conditions.   
All tables and chairs (permission granted but limited to 4 tables and 8 chairs) to be 
removed from outside and stored inside by 6pm. 
All external lights to be turned off by 6pm. 
No noise/vibration nuisance to residents. 
 
These conditions were imposed to protect residential amenity and residents well being. 
 
Conclusion  
This residential location is totally unsuited for either an on or off premises licence. 
The resulting nuisance will totally change this parade of non core frontage and severely impact 
on residential amenity. 
 

page 101



page 102



page 103



 

 

applications. 
C. For the purpose of Clauses A and B above, the Core Hours for 
this application for each premises use type as defined within this 
policy are:   

8. Restaurants 
Monday to Thursday: 9am to 11.30pm.  
Friday and Saturday: 9am to 12am.  
Sunday: 9am to 10.30pm.  
Sundays immediately prior to a bank holiday: 9am to 12am. 
D. Core hours are when customers are permitted to be on the 
premises and therefore the maximum opening hours permitted will 
be to the same start and terminal hours for each of the days where 
licensable activity is permitted.                                                           
E. For the purposes of this policy, ‘premises uses’ are defined within 
the relevant premises use policies within this statement. 

Policy RTN1 applies A. Applications outside the West End Cumulative Impact Zone will 
generally be granted subject to:  
1. The application meeting the requirements of policies CD1, PS1, 
PN1 and CH1.  
2. The hours for licensable activities being within the council’s Core 
Hours Policy HRS1.  
3. The applicant has taken account of the Special Consideration 
Zones Policy SCZ1 if the premises are located within a designated 
zone.  
4. The application and operation of the venue meeting the definition 
of a restaurant as per Clause C.  
B. Applications inside the West End Cumulative Impact Zone will 
generally be granted subject to:  
1. The application meeting the requirements of policies CD1, PS1, 
PN1 and CH1.  
2. The hours for licensable activities are within the council’s Core 
Hours Policy HRS1.  
3. The applicant has demonstrated that they will not add to 
cumulative impact within the Cumulative Impact Zone.  
4. The application and operation of the venue meeting the definition 
of a restaurant as per Clause C.  
C. For the purposes of this policy a restaurant is defined as:  
1. A premises in which customers are shown to their table or the 
customer will select a table themselves to which food is either 
served to them or they have collected themselves.  
2. Which provide food in the form of substantial table meals that are 
prepared on the premises and are served and consumed at a table. 
3. Which do not provide any takeaway service of food and/or drink 
for immediate consumption.  
4. Where alcohol shall not be sold, supplied, or consumed on the 
premises otherwise than to persons who are bona fide taking 
substantial table meals and provided always that the consumption of 
alcohol by such persons is ancillary to taking such meals.  
5. The sale and consumption of alcohol prior to such meals may be 
in a bar area but must also be ancillary to the taking of such meal. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

page 104



page 105



page 106



 

 

 
Premises Plans          Appendix 1 

 

 
 

 
 
 

page 107



 

 

 
 
 

page 108



 

 

 
 

page 109



 

 

 
 

page 110



 

 

 
Applicant Supporting Documents       Appendix 2 

 
None 

page 111



 

 

 
Premises History         Appendix 3 

 
 

There is no appeal history. 
 
Temporary Event Notices 

Application Details of 
Application 

Date Determined Decision 

20/11201/LITENP Temporary Event 
Notice 

5 December 2020 Notice Granted 

20/11203/LITENP Temporary Event 
Notice 

17 December 2021 Notice Granted 

 

page 112



 

 

 
 

Appendix 4 
 
CONDITIONS CONSISTENT WITH THE OPERATING SCHEDULE AND CONDITIONS 
PROPOSED BY A PARTY TO THE HEARING  
 
When determining an application for a new premises licence under the provisions of the 
Licensing Act 2003, the licensing authority must, unless it decides to reject the application, grant 
the licence subject to the conditions which are indicated as mandatory in this schedule. 
 
At a hearing the licensing authority may, in addition, and having regard to any representations 
received, grant the licence subject to such conditions which are consistent with the operating 
schedule submitted by the applicant as part of their application, or alter or omit these conditions, 
or add any new condition to such extent as the licensing authority considers necessary for the 
promotion of the licensing objectives. 
 
This schedule lists those conditions which are consistent with the operating schedule, or 
proposed as necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives by a responsible authority 
or an interested party as indicated. These conditions have not been submitted by the licensing 
service but reflect the positions of the applicant, responsible authority or interested party and 
have not necessarily been agreed 
 
Mandatory Conditions 
 
1. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when there is no designated premises 

supervisor in respect of this licence. 
 
2. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when the designated premises supervisor 

does not hold a personal licence or the personal licence is suspended. 
 
3. Every supply of alcohol under this licence must be made or authorised by a person who 

holds a personal licence. 
 
4.          (1)  The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry 

out, arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the 
premises. 

 
(2)  In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the 

following activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of 
encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises— 

 
(a)  games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require 

or encourage, individuals to; 
 

(i)  drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol 
sold or supplied on the premises before the cessation of the period in 
which the responsible person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or 

(ii)  drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or 
otherwise); 

 
(b)  provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or 

discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in 
a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective; 

 
(c)  provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage 

or reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or 

page 113



 

 

less in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing 
objective; 

 
(d)  selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, 

or in the vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to 
condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects 
of drunkenness in any favourable manner; 

 
 (e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than 

where that other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of a 
disability). 

 
5.  The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to 

customers where it is reasonably available. 
 
6.          (1)  The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that 

an age verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the 
sale or supply of alcohol. 

 
(2)  The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must 

ensure that the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with 
the age verification policy. 

 

(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be 

under 18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to 

produce on request, before being served alcohol, identification bearing their 

photograph, date of birth and either— 

 (a)  a holographic mark, or 

 (b)  an ultraviolet feature. 

 
7.  The responsible person must ensure that— 

(a)  where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on 

the premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up 

in advance ready for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is available 

to customers in the following measures— 

  (i)  beer or cider: ½ pint;  

(ii)  gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and 

   (iii)  still wine in a glass: 125 ml; 

 
(b)  these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material 

which is available to customers on the premises; and 
 
(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of 

alcohol to be sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are 
available. 

 
A responsible person in relation to a licensed premises means the holder of the premise licence 
in respect of the premises, the designated premises supervisor (if any) or any individual aged 
18 or over who is authorised by either the licence holder or designated premises supervisor.  
For premises with a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the 
premises in a capacity that which enables him to prevent the supply of alcohol. 

page 114



 

 

 
8(i) A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or 

off the premises for a price which is less than the permitted price. 
 
8(ii) For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 8(i) above - 
 

(a)  "duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 
1979; 

 
(b)  "permitted price" is the price found by applying the formula - 

 
P = D+(DxV) 

 
Where - 

  
(i) P is the permitted price, 
(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty     

were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and 
(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if 

the value added tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the 
alcohol; 

 
(c)  "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in 

force a premises licence - 
   

(i)  the holder of the premises licence, 
(ii)  the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, 

or 
(iii)  the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of    

alcohol under such a licence; 
 

(d)   "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in 
force a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the 
premises in a capacity which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply 
in question; and 

 
(e)  "value added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value 

Added Tax Act 1994. 
 
8(iii). Where the permitted price given by Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above would (apart from this 

paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph 
shall be taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the 
nearest penny. 

 
8(iv).     (1)  Sub-paragraph 8(iv)(2) below applies where the permitted price given by 

Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above on a day ("the first day") would be different from the 
permitted price on the next day ("the second day") as a result of a change to the 
rate of duty or value added tax. 

(2)  The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or 
supplies of alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days 
beginning on the second day. 

 
Conditions consistent with the operating schedule 
None 
 
 
 

page 115



 

 

Conditions proposed by the Environmental Health and agreed by the applicant so as to 
form part of the operating schedule. 
 
9. No noise generated on the premises, or by its associated plant or equipment, shall 

emanate from the premises nor vibration be transmitted through the structure of the 
premises which gives rise to a nuisance 
 

10. The sale and supply of alcohol for consumption off the premises shall be restricted to 
alcohol consumed by persons who are seated in an area appropriately authorised for the 
use of tables and chairs on the highway and bona fidea and where the consumption of 
alcohol by such persons is ancillary to food/snack, and where the supply of alcohol is by 
waiter or waitress service only 
 

11. All outside tables and chairs shall be rendered unusable by 20.00 hours each day  
 

12. A direct telephone number for the manager at the premises shall be publicly available at 
all times the premises is open. This telephone number is to be made available to 
residents and businesses in the vicinity  
 

13. Outside of the hours authorised for the sale of alcohol and whilst the premises are open 
to the public, the licence holder shall ensure that all alcohol within the premises 
(including alcohol behind the counter) is secured in a locked store room or behind locked 
grilles, locked screens or locked cabinet doors so as to prevent access to the alcohol by 
both customers and staff  
 

14. All waste shall be properly presented and placed out for collection no earlier than 30 
minutes before the scheduled collection times  
 

15. The number of persons permitted in the premises, excluding the outside area, at any 
one time (excluding staff) shall not exceed 30 persons  
 

16. The supply of alcohol shall be by waiter or waitress service only  
 

17. Substantial food and non-intoxicating beverages, including drinking water, shall be 
available in all parts of the premises where alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption 
on the premises  
 

18. Patrons permitted to temporarily leave and then re-enter the premises, e.g. to smoke, 
shall not be permitted to take drinks or glass containers with them  

 
Conditions proposed by the Police and agreed by the applicant so as to form part of the 
operating schedule. 
 
19. The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system as per the 

minimum requirements of the Westminster Police Licensing Team. All entry and exit 
points will be covered enabling frontal identification of every person entering in any light 
condition. The CCTV system shall continually record whilst the premises is open for 
licensable activities and during all times when customers remain on the premises and 
will include the external area immediately outside the premises entrance. All recordings 
shall be stored for a minimum period of 31 days with date and time stamping. Viewing of 
recordings shall be made available immediately upon the request of Police or authorised 
officer throughout the preceding 31 day period. 

 
20.  A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of the CCTV 

system shall be on the premises at all times when the premises is open. This staff 
member must be able to provide a Police Officer or authorised council officer copies of 
recent CCTV images or data with the absolute minimum of delay when requested. 

page 116



 

 

 
21.  The consumption of alcohol on the premises shall only be to persons seated at table. 

Food will be available throughout the trading period. 
  
22.  The supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises shall be by Server, Waiter or 

Waitress service only. 
  
23.  Patrons permitted to temporarily leave and then re-enter the premises, e.g. to smoke, 

shall not be permitted to take drinks or glass containers with them. 
 
24.  A Challenge 25 proof of age scheme shall be operated at the premises where the only 

acceptable forms of identification are recognised photographic identification cards, such 
as a driving licence, passport or proof of age card with the PASS Hologram  

 
25.  An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request to an 

authorised officer of the City Council or the Police. It must be completed within 24 hours 
of the incident and will record the following:  

(a) all crimes reported to the venue  
(b) all ejections of patrons  
(c) any complaints received concerning crime and disorder  
(d) any incidents of disorder  
(e) all seizures of drugs or offensive weapons  
(f) any faults in the CCTV system, searching equipment or scanning equipment  
(g) any refusal of the sale of alcohol  
(h) any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service.  

 
26.  Notices shall be prominently displayed at all exits and the outside smoking area 

requesting patrons to respect the needs of local residents and leave the area quietly. 
 
27.  Food and Non-Intoxicating Beverages, including drinking water shall be available in all 

parts of the premises where alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on the premises. 
 
28.  There shall be no self-service of Alcohol. 
 
29.  Sales of alcohol for consumption off the premises shall be in sealed containers only, 

save for any external seating area shown on the plan.  
 
30.  Alcohol consumed outside the premises building shall only be consumed by patrons 

seated at tables and ancillary to their meal. 

page 117



 

 

 
Residential Map and List of Premises in the Vicinity    Appendix 5 
 

 
 
 
Resident Count = 311 
 

Licensed premises within 75 metres of 52 Lupus Street 
 

Licence Number  Trading Name   Address  Premises 
Type  

 Time Period 

20/08598/LIPN Not Recorded 58 - 60 Lupus 
Street London 
SW1V 3EE 

Food store Monday; 08:00 - 
22:00 | Tuesday; 
08:00 - 22:00 | 
Wednesday; 08:00 - 
22:00 | Thursday; 
08:00 - 22:00 | 
Friday; 08:00 - 22:00 
| Saturday; 08:00 - 
22:00 | Sunday; 
09:00 - 22:00 

 

page 118


	Agenda
	 Licensing Applications for Determination
	1. 10 AM: Home Grown, 44 Great Cumberland Place,W1H 7BS - Application for Premises Licence Variation
	2. 2 PM: 52 Lupus St (Ground Floor), London SW1V 3EE - Application for New Premises Licence



